
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
Resources Department 

Town Hall, Upper Street, London, N1 2UD 
 
 

AGENDA FOR THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE B 

 
Members of Licensing Sub Committee B are summoned to a meeting, which will be held in 
Committee Room 4, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on, 15 August 2017 at 6.30 pm. 
 
 
Yinka Owa 
Director of Law and Governance 
 
 
 

Enquiries to : Jackie Tunstall 

Tel : 020 7527 3068 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : 7 August 2017 

 
 
Membership Substitute 
 
Councillor Alex Diner (Chair) 
Councillor Diarmaid Ward 
Councillor Aysegul Erdogan (Vice-Chair) 
 

All other members of the Licensing committee 

 
Quorum: is 3 Councillors 
 

 
Welcome :  Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  

Procedures to be followed at the meeting are attached. 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 

A.  
 

Formal matters 
 

Page 

1.  Introductions and procedure 
 

 

2.  Apologies for absence 
 

 

3.  Declarations of substitute members 
 

 

4.  Declarations of interest 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the 

existence and details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes 
apparent; 

 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is 
already in the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   

In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in 
discussion of the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak 
or vote on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the 
start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the 
discussion and vote on the item. 
 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including 
from a trade union. 

(c)  Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you 
or your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and 
the council. 

(d)  Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or 
longer. 

(f)  Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in 
which you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

 (g) Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place 
of business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the 
securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 

 

5.  Order of Business 
 

 

6.  Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 

1 - 8 

B.  
 

Items for Decision 
 

Page 

1.  Essex Road Mini Market, 234 Essex Road, N1 3AP - Review application 
 
 

9 - 36 



 
 
 

C.  
 

Urgent non-exempt items 
 

 

 Any non-exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances. The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 
 

 

D.  
 

Exclusion of public and press 
 

 

 To consider whether, in view of the nature of the remaining items on the agenda, 
any of them are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt or confidential 
information within the terms of the Access to Information Procedure Rules in the 
Constitution and, if so, whether to exclude the press and public during 
discussion thereof. 

 

E.  
 

Urgent Exempt Items (if any) 
 

 

 Any exempt items which the Chair agrees should be considered urgently by 
reason of special circumstances.  The reasons for urgency will be agreed by the 
Chair and recorded in the minutes. 

 

 
 



 
 
 

 
ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   
  
PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE  
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

  
INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 
1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  
2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as detailed 
below. 

 

  
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:  
  
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present a 
summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report. 

 

  
3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or representations. 
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  
4)  Responsible Authorities to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points 
requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
5)  The Sub-Committee to question the responsible authorities on matters arising from their submission.  
  
6)  Interested Parties to present the key points of their representations; and clarify any points requested 
by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
7)  The Sub-Committee to question the objectors on matters arising from their submission.  
  
8) The applicant to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify any 
points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  
 
10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing Policy. 

 

 
11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of representations     
given above. 

 

 
CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  
12)  Responsible Authorities 2 
13)  Interested parties mins 
14)  Applicant each 
  

DELIBERATION AND DECISION  
 
15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 
16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification. 

 

 
17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 

 
 



 
 
 

ISLINGTON LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES -   
  
PROCEDURE FOR HEARING LICENSING REVIEW APPLICATIONS UNDER THE  
LICENSING ACT 2003 

 

  
INTRODUCTION TIME 

GUIDE 
1)  The Chair of the Sub-Committee will open the meeting and invite all members of the Sub-Committee, 
Officers, the applicant and anybody making representations, including witnesses (who have been given 
permission to appear) to introduce themselves. 

 

  
2)  The Chair will introduce the application and draw attention to the procedure to be followed as detailed 
below. 

 

  
CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATIONS:  
N.B. The Sub-Committee have read all the papers.  All parties should use this time to present a 
summary of their key points and not to repeat the detail already provided in the report. 

 

  
3)  The Licensing Officer will report any further information relating to the application or representations. 
Where necessary the relevant parties will respond to these points during their submissions. 

 

  
4)  The applicant (interested party or responsible authority) to present the key points of their 
representations; and clarify any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the 
Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
5)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicant (interested party or responsible authority) on matters 
arising from their submission. 

 

  
6)  Other representatives (interested party or responsible authority) to present the key points of their 
representations; and clarify any points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses, given permission by the 
Authority, may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
7)  The Sub-Committee to question the other representatives (interested party or responsible authority) on 
matters arising from their submission. 

 

  
8) The licensee to present the key points of their application, address the representations and clarify any 
points requested by the Authority.  Witnesses given permission by the Authority may appear. 

10 
mins 

  
9)  The Sub-Committee to question the applicants on matters arising from their submission.  
 
10)  If required, the Licensing Officer to clarify matters relating to the application and the Licensing Policy. 

 

 
11)  The Chair may give permission for any party to question another party in the order of representations     
given above. 

 

 
CASE SUMMARIES 

 

  
12)  Applicant 2 
13)  Other representatives mins 
14)  Licensee each 
  

DELIBERATION AND DECISION  
 
15)  The Sub-Committee may retire to consider its decision.  The Committee Clerk and Legal Officer will 
remain with the Sub-Committee. 

 

 
16)  If the Sub-Committee retires, all parties should remain available to provide further information or 
clarification. 

 

 
17)  The chair will announce their decision giving reasons and any conditions to be attached to the 
licence.  All parties will be informed of the decision in writing. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

4 
 

London Borough of Islington 
 

Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 June 2017 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee B held at Committee Room 4, Town Hall, 
Upper Street, N1 2UD on  19 June 2017 at 6.30 pm. 

 
 

Present: Councillors: Alex Diner (Chair), Aysegul Erdogan (Items B1 and 
B4), Gary Poole (Item B3) and Flora Williamson 

Also 
Present: 

Councillors: Gary Poole (Item B1). 

 
Councillor Alex Diner in the Chair 

 

153 INTRODUCTIONS AND PROCEDURE (Item A1) 
 
Councillor Alex Diner welcomed everyone to the meeting and officers and members 
introduced themselves.  The procedure for the conduct of the meeting was outlined. 
 

154 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Item A2) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Diarmaid Ward. 
 

155 DECLARATIONS OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (Item A3) 
 
Councillor Gary Poole substituted for Councillor Aysegul Erdogan for Item B3 and 
Councillor Flora Williamson substituted for Councillor Diarmaid Ward for the meeting. 
 

156 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item A4) 
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

157 ORDER OF BUSINESS (Item A5) 
 
The order of business would be Item B3, B1 and B4.  It was noted that Item B2 had been 
agreed by all parties and had been withdrawn. 
 

158 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item A6) 
 
RESOLVED: 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 February 2017 be confirmed as an accurate 
record of proceedings and the Chair be authorised to sign them. 
 

159 TITANIA, 113 HOLLOWAY ROAD, N7 8LT - NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item B1) 
 
The licensing officer reported that this item had been deferred from the 1 June.  New 
conditions 27- 29 had been agreed with the acoustic officer since the report had been 
published. The police had agreed the hours and conditions.  The noise officer had concerns 
regarding the acoustic report and had asked that it be disregarded. 
 
The noise officer reported that, where there was perceived to be a risk of homophobic hate 
crime, the licensee would need to manage that risk.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A6



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 June 2017 
 

5 
 

The licensing authority stated that there had been engagement prior to the application.  The 
applicant had stated that they would apply for core hours but when the application was 
submitted the hours applied for were later hours.  The applicant had met with the residents.  
The authority considered that this was a bar and not a nightclub and did not consider that 
core hours for a nightclub would be appropriate.  The other premises the applicant had in 
the West End was operated until midnight. The authority was not opposed to the grant of a 
licence but the hours would need to be reduced. 
 
In response to questions it was reported that, at the residents meeting, the applicant stated 
that they wanted nightclub hours.  The licensing authority did not consider that the 
cumulative impact of these hours had been dealt with in the application.  The licensing 
authority did not consider a social club was the same as a nightclub and did not consider 
that the applicant had rebutted the presumption of the cumulative impact policy in relation to 
hours.  
 
The public health authority informed the Sub-Committee that 43% of ambulance related 
ambulance call outs in the area occurred after 11pm.  This was a cumulative impact area 
and within a 250m radius of the premises there were 32 alcohol-related callouts between 
January and December 2016.  They were concerned about the late night impact of this 
premises in a cumulative impact area.  
 
In response to a question to the public health authority it was noted that they were 
concerned regarding an 11pm cut off hour based on the collected public health data. 
 
Two local residents and Councillor Gary Poole spoke against the application.  Councillor 
Poole reported that the applicant had not recognised the cumulative impact policy.  He 
stated that the proposal for a LGBT club was a smokescreen.  There was no exception to 
the cumulative impact policy with regard to this premises.  Good management and another 
premises elsewhere was not a consideration under the policy.  This was a nightclub 
application and the premises would be adding to the impact in the area.  One resident 
reported that they had not objected because of the previous problems with the premises or 
because they wanted to harm nightlife but considered that there needed to be a balance 
with the needs of residents.  Even though the previous club had closed, residents were still 
routinely woken up by pub goers and people in cars with loud music. No noise report could 
indicate this noise.  The premises would have a capacity of over 160 people and would 
have hours long past midnight.  This would have a negative impact on the area.  He asked 
the Sub-Committee to balance the application with the amenity of residents.  Another 
resident raised objections as the application was in a cumulative impact area.  The 
applicant had not provided evidence that the premises would be an exception to the policy.  
An exception may be that the premises was not alcohol led.  This premises had an 
emphasis on alcohol and not food. Good management should be a minimum standard. The 
more alcohol the more likelihood of noise from patrons.  The hours were a significant 
extension to the hours of the premises in Westminster.  There had been no noise survey 
agreed and there was a high density of residents in this area.  There were no exceptional 
circumstances relating to this application. 
 
In response to a question it was confirmed that good standards of management were not 
considered an exception in the policy.   
 
The applicant’s representative stated that the premises had planning permission.  The 
application was not a smokescreen for the future. The premises would be run as a social 
club for the lesbian community.  This was a far cry from the previous premises that was 
there.  The applicant had met with residents and licensing officers and it was clear that 
residents were not happy with an application beyond 11pm.  The applicant had never stated 
that she would accept these hours.  Conditions and reduced hours had been agreed with 

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 June 2017 
 

6 
 

the police. There were many gay bars for men but none for women and Titania in 
Westminster was now closed for redevelopment.  Since it had been closed a number of 
women had been left isolated and required a similar premises to go to.  This application was 
for a private members club with a fob key so there would be no waiting outside.  The police, 
who were the crime and disorder experts, were happy with the application.  The police had 
sought reviews for the previous premises.  This was more of a nightclub than bar with a 
dance area downstairs.  The dispersal plan was detailed in the papers.  The cumulative 
impact was considered to have been addressed in the detailed operating schedule.  It was 
stated that 98% of patrons would use public transport so would not use cars.  The tube ran 
throughout the night on Friday and Saturday nights.  There had been no issues regarding 
drunkenness at the Titania in Westminster.   
 
In response to questions it was noted that the Westminster premises had operating hours 
until midnight on Friday and Saturday evenings.  There was concern expressed that these 
hours were significantly longer for this application with the same business model.  The 
applicant’s representative stated that there were two other ladies’ venues in Westminster 
that remained open until 2 or 3 in the morning and patrons could move onto these.  In this 
Holloway premises there would be no other place for patrons to go. This would be a social 
club but with a dance area and the same issues applied to the later hours.  It was 
considered that a later licence was necessary as the patrons would have nowhere else to 
go and the extra hours were designed for them and their safety.  In response to a question 
about noise the applicant’s representative stated that the survey had stated that many 
patrons would get Taxis from the premises.  There would be one door supervisor.  The Sub-
Committee raised concerns that the previous premises had more than one door supervisor 
but could not manage the noise nuisance. The applicant’s representative informed the Sub-
Committee that there was a detailed dispersal policy which detailed how the area would be 
policed by the supervisor.  It was noted that the premises was on a red route. It was noted 
that the cumulative impact policy had not been addressed in the operating schedule but was 
detailed in the tabled submission.  The relaxation area would have benches around the 
outside.  The function room contained the dance floor. The applicant’s representative 
considered that the meeting with residents had been cordial. He understood that some 
residents would agree the application if normal public house hours had been applied for.  
The applicant had gone a long way to meeting residential concerns. The applicant’s 
representative stated that there had been temporary event notices at the Westminster 
premises and had no issues.  They would not serve patrons if they appeared drunk.  
 
In summary, the noise officer stated that the applicant had not adequately dealt with the 
potential impact.  The dispersal policy detailed door supervisors but mentioned only one.  
One door supervisor for over 100 patrons did not seem very practical. Residents stated that 
the applicant had bristled at the meeting with residents and her representative had to calm 
her down.  The applicant had destroyed the goodwill of residents.  The applicant had stated 
that 98% of patrons would take the tube but it was noted that from the survey 50% would 
use taxis or their cars. 
The applicant stated that at the residents’ meeting they had put their point of view across.  
This application was not a smokescreen but a female venue.  There was a concern about 
safety as masculine looking women were attacked regularly.  This was a genuine bar/social 
club and they took safety seriously.  
 
RESOLVED 
That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Titania, 113 Holloway Road, 
N7 8LT be refused.  
 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 June 2017 
 

7 
 

2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy, particularly regarding policies 2 and 8.  
 
The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 2.  The premises fall within the 
Holloway Road and Finsbury Park cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a 
rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to 
the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can 
demonstrate why the operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative 
impact or otherwise impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from the responsible authority for public health that the 
area in which the premises is located had 72 alcohol related ambulance callouts between 
January and December 2016 and that 43% occurred after 11pm.  The Sub-Committee 
noted that the responsible authority’s concerns related to the fact that this was a further 
alcohol led premises proposing to operate after 11pm.  
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence from local residents that even after the closure of the 
previous business at the premises they were still routinely woken by people passing through 
the area. People parked cars, played loud music, or were drunk and noisy. The Sub-
Committee noted resident concerns that the premises were alcohol led and had a capacity 
of 160 people.  Residents submitted that there was no noise survey in relation to properties 
abutting the rear of the premises and that no noise report could reflect what residents heard 
on a regular basis. The Sub-Committee noted residents’ particular concerns as to the 
dispersal of patrons and use of taxis as the premises was on a red route.   
 
The Sub-Committee heard various representations from local residents and a ward 
councillor as well as public health and the licensing authority in relation to the location of the 
premises within the Holloway Road and Finsbury Park cumulative impact area.  The Sub-
Committee noted representations that good management in proposed premises, or the fact 
that an applicant had previously managed similar premises did not make an application 
exceptional. The capacity of the premises was considerably higher than that referred to in 
the policy and the premises were clearly alcohol led. The Sub-Committee noted the 
licensing authority’s view that the core hours for a nightclub, as set out in the policy, would 
not be appropriate for the premises as the licensing authority saw the premises as a bar 
and not a nightclub.   
  
The Sub-Committee concluded that the applicant had failed to rebut the presumption that 
the grant of a new licence for the premises would add to the existing cumulative impact.  
The premises were not small premises; the capacity was 160 and it was difficult to see how 
this number of people leaving the premises late at night would not impact adversely on the 
area. This would be so regardless of whether the premises closed at midnight, as 
suggested by the licensing authority, or 2am as requested by the applicant. Although the 
premises intended to operate as a members’ only club, the Sub-Committee was of the view 
that the size of the premises, combined with the hours sought and the proposed operation 
of the premises would impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives, 
particularly in respect of the prevention of public nuisance.  
 
The Sub-Committee particularly considered paragraph 2.15 of the national guidance which 
stated that licensing authorities should focus on the effect of the licensable activities on 
persons living and working in the area around the premises.  The Sub-Committee was 
persuaded by the concerns of the residents and did not believe that the application showed 
sufficient detail in relation to the cumulative impact policy. Although the Sub-Committee 
noted the detailed conditions agreed with the responsible authorities, particularly the noise 
team, it concluded that the licence, even with the conditions, would add to the existing 

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 June 2017 
 

8 
 

cumulative impact and that it was therefore appropriate and proportionate to refuse the 
application.  
 

160 MAIL RAIL, PHOENIX PLACE, WC1X 0DF - NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item B2) 
 
The Sub-Committee noted that Item B2 had been withdrawn from the agenda as conditions 
had been agreed with the interested parties.  
 

161 CAFE TROPICAL, 240 HORNSEY ROAD, N7 7LL - NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item B3) 
 
The licensing officer reported that the representation on page 239 of the agenda had been 
withdrawn and the remaining objector had submitted a further representation. 
 
The applicant stated that the application was for a restaurant which was under 50 covers 
and was restricted with core hours to be policy compliant.  There would be restaurant 
conditions on the licence. He stated that it would be a quality establishment which was a 
café in the morning and sold pizza/pasta from lunchtime.  He hoped to bring trade to a 
depressed area and he had no complaints with his other restaurant.  He would not bring the 
same noise problems as the nearby public house mentioned in the objection.  He had 
agreed detailed conditions with the noise team and proposed a limit of six smokers outside 
the premises although he reported that smokers may move down the road and out of 
control of the premises. He hoped to bring trade to the area.   
 
In response to questions it was noted that that patrons would normally leave earlier than 
midnight.  The kitchen would shut at 10.30pm and the premises would normally close at 
11pm.  There may be a couple of tables that would stay later. There would be some 
takeaway business.  They may use a delivery service but not for their core time.  Deliveries 
would mainly be by cycle so there would be no obstruction and no queues.  There was not 
expected to be a large number for the take away service.  There would be no alcohol 
included with the take away service.   
 
RESOLVED 
1) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Café Tropical, 240 

Hornsey Road, N7 7LL, be granted to allow:- 
 

a) The supply of alcohol, for consumption on the premises from 10 am until 11 pm 
Sunday to Thursday and from 10 am until midnight Friday and Saturday. 

b) The provision of recorded music from 10 am until 11pm on Sunday to Thursday and 
from 10am until midnight Friday and Saturday. 

c) The provision of late night refreshment from 11pm to midnight on Friday and 
Saturday. 

 
2) That conditions outlined in appendix 3 and detailed on pages 243 and 244 of the 

agenda be applied to the licence with the following addition:- 
 

 That there be a limit of 6 patrons smoking outside the premises.  
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 

Page 5



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 June 2017 
 

9 
 

The Sub-Committee took into consideration Licensing Policy 2.  The premises fall within the 
Holloway Road and Finsbury Park cumulative impact area.  Licensing policy 2 creates a 
rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences that are likely to add to 
the existing cumulative impact will normally be refused, unless an applicant can 
demonstrate why the operation of the premises involved will not add to the cumulative 
impact or otherwise impact adversely on the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
Two local resident objections had been received.  The Sub-Committee noted that one of 
those objections was withdrawn before the hearing. The Sub-Committee further noted that 
the noise team objection was also withdrawn after the applicant had agreed conditions.    
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the hours sought were within the hours specified in licensing 
policy 8. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence that the premises was a small premises with under 50 
covers and that the application had been deliberately restricted to within the core hours so 
as to comply with the policy.  The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant hoped to bring 
business to a depressed part of Hornsey Road and that he did not want to cause trouble. 
The Sub-Committee heard that detailed conditions had been agreed that dealt 
comprehensively with noise issues.  The applicant did not want late hours. It was noted that 
the applicant was prepared to agree a further condition limiting the number of smokers 
outside the premises.   
 
The Sub-Committee noted the resident’s concerns about the number of patrons, the 
possibility of eating or drinking outside the premises, the possibility of loud music in the 
premises and possible noise from deliveries.  
 
The Sub-Committee was satisfied that, with the conditions agreed, together with an extra 
condition in relation to smokers, the grant of the licence would promote the licensing 
objectives. The Sub-Committee noted that the capacity of the premises was less than 50 
and that the applicant proposed to operate within the core restaurant hours under licensing 
policy 8.  The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant had agreed to conditions preventing 
vertical drinking and making alcohol ancillary to a meal. The Sub-Committee was therefore 
satisfied that the application fell within the exemptions to the cumulative impact policy and 
that the grant of the licence, with the conditions, was appropriate and proportionate and 
would promote the licensing objectives.  
 

162 YASAR HALIM, PATISSERIE AND COFFEE SHOP, 167 FAIRBRIDGE ROAD, N19 3HS - 
NEW PREMISES LICENCE (Item B4) 
 
The licensing officer reported that there had been no response to the email sent to the 
objector from the applicant 
 
The applicant’s representative stated that this was a coffee shop/bakery  with other 
branches in North London.  The application had two resident representations, one in 
support. The objector raised concerns about anti-social behaviour but it was not considered 
that this premises would cause problems.  Conditions had been agreed.  
 
RESOLVED 
1) That the application for a new premises licence, in respect of Yasar Halim, 167 

Fairbridge Road, N19 3HS, be granted to allow:- 
 

a) The supply of alcohol, for consumption on the premises from 11 am until 9.30 pm 
Monday to Sunday. 

b) Opening hours to be:- 6am to 10pm Monday to Sunday. 

Page 6



Licensing Sub Committee B -  19 June 2017 
 

10 
 

 
2) That conditions outlined in appendix 3 and detailed on pages 267 and 268  of the 

agenda be applied to the licence. 
 

REASONS FOR DECISION 
The Sub-Committee listened to all the evidence and submissions and read all the material. 
The Sub-Committee reached the decision having given consideration to the Licensing Act 
2003, as amended, and its regulations, the national guidance and the Council’s Licensing 
Policy.  
 
One local resident objection had been received and one resident wrote in support of the 
application.  There had been representations from the police and noise team and conditions 
had been agreed.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the licensing officer had forwarded, on behalf of the 
applicant, an email to the objector but that there had been no response.   
 
The Sub-Committee heard evidence that the premises were a coffee shop and patisserie. 
The premises were run by a well-known and established firm with a number of bakeries in 
north London.   The applicant had noted the objector’s concerns regarding possible noise 
and anti-social behaviour but did not believe that the premises would cause problems and 
had agreed conditions. 
 
The Sub-Committee concluded that the grant of the licence with the agreed conditions 
would promote the licensing objectives. Comprehensive conditions had been agreed with 
the police and noise team and the hours sought and nature of the business was such that 
the Sub-Committee was satisfied that the grant of the licence was appropriate and 
proportionate.  
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.30 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIR 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment & Regeneration 
Municipal Office, 222 Upper Street, London, N1 1XR 

Report of: Service Director, Public Protection 

Meeting of Date Agenda Item Ward(s) 

Licensing Sub-Committee 15 August 2107 St Peter’s  

Delete as 
appropriate 

Non-exempt 

Subject: REVIEW APPLICATION 
ESSEX ROAD MINI MARKET, 234 ESSEX ROAD, LONDON, N1 3AP 

1. Synopsis

1.1 This is an application by the Licensing Authority for a Review of the Premises Licence under
Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 made by Islington Council’s Trading Standards Service.

1.2 The grounds for review is related to the licensing objective:

i) Prevention of crime and disorder. 

2. Relevant Representations

Licensing Authority No 

Metropolitan Police Yes 

Noise No 

Health and Safety No 

Trading Standards NA 

Public Health No

Page 9

Agenda Item B1



Page 10



6.1 The Council is required to consider this application in the light of all relevant information, and if 
approval is given, it may attach such conditions as appropriate to promote the licensing 
objectives. 

 

Background papers: 

The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
Licensing Act 2003 
Secretary of States Guidance 

Final Report Clearance 

 

Signed by    
 Service Director – Public Protection  Date 
 
 
 
 

   
 

Received by    
 Head of Scrutiny and Democratic Services  Date 
    

 

Report author: Licensing Service 

Tel: 020 75027 3031 

E-mail: licensing@islington.gov.uk 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3/8/17

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Recommendations 

We believe that this matter is of a seriousness that merits suspension of the licence for a 
period of no less than four weeks. 

We would also like the licence amended as suggested below: 

The addition of: 

• No alcoholic goods or tobacco products will ever be purchased or taken from persons
calling to the shop.

• The licensee will immediately report to Trading Standards any instance of a caller to the
shop attempting to sell alcohol or tobacco products.

• Only alcoholic drinks which are detailed on invoices will be purchased or accepted as
part of a 'free' offer. Invoices (or copies) for all alcoholic goods on the premises will be
made available to officers from the council, police or HMRC upon request.

• The licensee shall adopt 'Challenge 25', the Retail of Alcohol Standards Group's advice
for off-licences, and promote it through the prominent displ�y of posters ..

• The licensee shall ensure that staff are trained on relevant matters including the
conditions on the premises licence; age restricted products; and (if they are ever left in
charge of the shop) the operation of the cctv system and how to deal with visits from
authorised officers. The licensee shall keep records of training and instructions given to
staff, detailing the areas covered, and make them available for inspection upon request
by authorised officers. Staff shall sign to confirm that they have received and
underftood the training. I 

• Age-r+stricted products training shall cover the following stepf: the assessment of age;
how and when to challenge for proof of age; acceptable proof of age and how to check
it; and recording refusals.

• The licensee shall put arrangements in place to ensure that before serving alcohol or
other age-restricted goods to customers they believe to be Jess than 25, staff ask to see
accredited proof of age: that is, proof of age cards carrying the 'PASS' logo (and no
others), a Passport, or UK Driving Licence bearing the photograph and date of birth of
the bearer.

• The licensee shall require staff to note any refusals to sell to young people in a refusals
log. The refusals fog shall be checked and signed monthly by the designated premises
supervisor. The refusals log shall be made available for inspection upon request by the
licensing team, police or trading standards.

• Super strength beer (ie. that of a strength of 7.5% abv or greater) shall not be sold at
l�ss than the verifiable cost of the product to the busi

1
ess and the price of such beers

rm be clearly displayed to consumers. 

1 The removal of conditions 10 (duplicated by 11) & 12-15 (updated by the proposed conditions). 

Page4 of5 

Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Your 
 

 
 

License Review 
  

Our 

  

Licensing/NI 
  

Date: 02/07/2017 
 

  METROPOLITAN POLICE 
SERVICE 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PREMISES LICENSE REVIEW: 
ESSEX RD MINI MARKET 
234 ESSEX ROAD 
N1 3AP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Islington Police Licensing Team 
Islington Police Station 
2 Tolpuddle Street 
London 
N1 0YY 
Telephone: 07799133204  
  
Email: 
licensingpolice@islington.gov.uk 
 
 2nd July 2017 

 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Re: Premises License Review: Essex Rd Mini Market 234 Essex Rd N1 3AP.       
 
With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a 
Responsible Authority, will be supporting this application for a review of a premises license under Section 51 
Licensing Act 2003.  
 
I have read the application submitted by Mr Alonso Ercilla, Trading Standards Manager, 222 Upper Street N1 
1XR. 
 
I am in full agreement with his assessment of the premises. I believe that the management standards are, at 
this time, far from reaching the high standards required and expected by all of the Responsible Authorities 
and the Council Licensing Policy.  
 
The evidence put forward in Mr Ercilla’s report makes it clear to me that Mr Hasan Dongan had purchased a 
substantial amount of alcohol from a non reputable source and fully intended to sell this alcohol without giving 
any consideration for the customers who would purchase it and in a deliberate effort to avoid paying duty on 
it.  
 
All that said I cannot find any details relating to incidents of crime or disorder related to the venue, although it 
has been reported that groups of youths do hang around the venue and these youths are involved in Anti-
Social Behaviour. 
 
I do support and agree with the clear recommendations in Mr Ercilla’s report and feel that a minimum 4 week 
suspension should be served and the conditions suggested added to the license. I would also put forward the 
following CCTV condition to replace the current CCTV condition on the license as I feel that this condition is 
now inadequate. 
 

CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained, at all times that the premises is open for 
licensable activities, so as to comply with the following criteria:  

 
The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is 
working properly and that the date and time are correct.  A record of these checks, showing the 
date and name of the person checking, shall be kept and made available to Police or authorised 
Council officers on request; 

 
One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length 
image of anyone entering; 

 
The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the 
premises accessible to the public; 

 

 

Page 32



The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped; 
 

Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free 
of charge to Police or authorised Council officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act 
1998) within 24 hours of any request; & 

 
At all times, there will be a person on the premises who can operate the system sufficiently to 
allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on request and to supply a copy of 
footage immediately to Police to assist with the immediate investigation of an offence. 

 
 
 
 
Islington Police Licensing Team 
Pc Steven Harrington 425NI 
 

Page 33



Annex 4  

Suggested conditions in line with review application submitted by the Council Trading Standards 
1. No alcoholic goods or tobacco products will ever be purchased or taken from persons calling to the

shop.

2. The licensee will immediately report to Trading Standards any instance of a caller to the shop attempting
to sell alcohol or tobacco products.

3. Only alcoholic drinks which are detailed on invoices will be purchased or accepted as part of a ‘free’
offer.  Invoices (or copies) for all alcoholic goods on the premises will be made available to officers
from the council, police or HMRC upon request.

4. The licensee shall adopt ‘Challenge 25’, the Retail of Alcohol Standards Group’s advice for off-
licences, and promote it through the prominent display of posters.

5. The licensee shall ensure that staff are trained on relevant matters including the conditions on the
premises licence; age restricted products; and (if they are ever left in charge of the shop) the operation
of the cctv system and how to deal with visits from authorised officers.  The licensee shall keep records
of training and instructions given to staff, detailing the areas covered, and make them available for
inspection upon request by authorised officers.  Staff shall sign to confirm that they have received and
understood the training.

6. Age-restricted products training shall cover the following steps: the assessment of age; how and when
to challenge for proof of age; acceptable proof of age and how to check it; and recording refusals.

7. The licensee shall put arrangements in place to ensure that before serving alcohol or other age-
restricted goods to customers they believe to be less than 25, staff ask to see accredited proof of age:
that is, proof of age cards carrying the ‘PASS’ logo (and no others), a Passport, or UK Driving Licence
bearing the photograph and date of birth of the bearer.

8. The licensee shall require staff to note any refusals to sell to young people in a refusals log.  The refusals
log shall be checked and signed monthly by the designated premises supervisor.  The refusals log shall
be made available for inspection upon request by the licensing team, police or trading standards.

9. Super strength beer (ie. that of a strength of 7.5% abv or greater) shall not be sold at less than the
verifiable cost of the product to the business and the price of such beers will be clearly displayed to
consumers.

Suggested conditions in line with representation from the Metropolitan Police service. 
10. CCTV shall be installed, operated and maintained, at all times that the premises is open for licensable

activities, so as to comply with the following criteria:

11. The licensee will ensure that the system is checked every two weeks to ensure that the system is working
properly and that the date and time are correct.  A record of these checks, showing the date and name
of the person checking, shall be kept and made available to Police or authorised Council officers on
request;

12. One camera will show a close-up of the entrance to the premises, to capture a clear, full length image of
anyone entering;

13. The system will provide full coverage of the interior of the premises and any exterior part of the premises
accessible to the public;

14. The system shall record in real time and recordings will be date and time stamped;

Page 34



 
15. Recordings will be kept for a minimum of 31 days and downloaded footage will be provided free of charge 

to Police or authorised Council officers on request (subject to the Data Protection Act 1998) within 24 
hours of any request; and at all times, there will be a person on the premises who can operate the system 
sufficiently to allow Police or authorised Council officers to view footage on request and to supply a copy 
of footage immediately to Police to assist with the immediate investigation of an offence. 

 

 

Page 35



Title: Essex Road Mini Market

Printed By:
RO RO

Printed At:
03-08-2017

Page 1 of 1

03/08/2017http://gisappint/MapThat/Default.aspx

Page 36


	Agenda
	A6 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	B1 Essex Road Mini Market, 234 Essex Road, N1 3AP - Review application



